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)
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COMPILAINT AND JURY DEMAND

—

INTRODUCTION

1. In this action, plaintiff E.M. seeks injunctive relief and damages under Title ITI of the
Amernicans With Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12181 et seq. and the Massachusetts
Public Accommodations Law, M.G.L. c. 272 § 98. Plaintiff alleged that Defendants
unlawfully disenrolled her from its summer camp program because of her disability,
diabetes meilitus, and denied her parents’ request for assistance from camp staff in
performing tasks necessary for the management of her diabetes.

IL. PARTIES

2. Plaintiff E.M. is a seven-year-old child who resides with her parents and older sister in
Wellesley, Massachusetts. She is a person with a disability within the meaning of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (the ADA) and the Massachusetts Public
Accommodations Law in that she has diabetes mellitus, a disorder of the endocrine

system that substantially limits one or more major life activities, including her ability to



III.

IV.

eat and metabolize food.

Defendant Town Sports International, Inc. (TSI) has a usual place of business at 888
Seventh Avenue, New York, NY. It is a leading owner and operator of more than 130
health and fitness clubs and recreational programs in major cities from Washington D.C.
north through New England as well as three clubs in Switzerland. As such, it is a public
accommodation within the meaning of Title ITI of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(the ADA) and the Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law. Therefore, TSI is
subject to Title III and the Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law.

Upon information and belief, defendant TSI Wellesley, Inc. is a subsidiary of TSI. It has
a usual place of business at 140 Great Plain Avenue, Wellesley, Massachusetts. TSI
Wellesley owns and operates Wellesley Sports Club and Camp Wellesley, a summer day
camp for children. As such, it is a public accommodation within the meaning of Title III
of the ADA and the Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law. Therefore, TSI
Wellesley is subject to Title III of the ADA and the Massachusetts Public
Accommodations Law.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

Jurisdiction of this Court is conferred pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and § 1343(a)(4).
The Court has jurisdiction of plaintiff’s state law claim by virtue of its pendant
jurisdiction.

The events giving rise to this action occurred within the District of Massachusetts. Thus
venue is properly within this District pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).

FACTUAL ATLEGATIONS
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E.M. has diabetes mellitus, a disorder of the endocrine system that results in insufficient
production of insulin, an enzyme necessary to metabolize glucose. Insufficient insulin
causes a buildup of blood sugar and, if not contmuously monitored and adequately
treated, can cause permanent damage to the kidneys, heart, eyes, and nervous system.
E.M.’s diabetes requires constant delivery of insulin by means of a pump attached to her
body that automatically injects insulin into her bloodstream. The pump consists of a
pump reservoir filled with insulin, a small battery-operated pump, and a computer chip
that allows her to control exactly how much insulin the pump delivers. The pump
reservoir delivers insulin to the body by a thin plastic tube with a needle or soft cannula at
the end through which the insulin passes. The pump can be programmed to deliver
higher doses of insulin when needed to counteract high blood sugar levels and
carbohydrate consumption.

E.M.’s diabetes requires frequent monitoring, This monitoring involves pricking her
finger to extract a drop of blood after meals and periodically throughout the day and
testing the blood to measure the blood sugar level. A high blood sugar level is corrected
by adjusting the amount of insulin delivered by her pump. A low level is corrected by
providing a high-carbohydrate snack. Monitoring may also involve testing her urine for
the presence of ketones to determine whether her body is failing to metabolize glucose
and is breaking down fats to provide energy.

In order to control her diabetes, E.M. must eat at regularly scheduled times and cannot
skip meals. In addition to three meals a day, she must eat snacks twice a day between

meals and must keep her carbohydrate intake consistent as much as possible.
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E.M.’s diabetes has been successfully managed by staff at her school, pre-school,
afterschool placements and by staff at other recreational programs she has attended.
E.M.’s mother, a physician, has trained teachers and other care providers in assisting with
monitoring E.M.’s diabetes. E.M.’s parents provide all meals and snacks that she
consumes when she is not at home together with information about the number of
carbohydrates in each item of food to assist in adjusting the amount of msulin
administered by the pump.

On or about F ebruary 9, 2004, E.M.’s parents enrolled E.M. and her older sister Hannah
at Camp Wellesley (the Camp) on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays during the
summer.

In late May 2004, Dr. Thompson, E.M.’s mother, sent the Camp completed medical
forms for each child, E.M.’s form included information about her diabetes.

Dr. Thompson contacted the Camp repeatedly in an attempt to set up a meeting to teach
staff about managing E.M.’s diabetes. She was told to call a person named Kara. When
she received no reply to her messages to Kara, Dr. Thompson went to the Camp and left a
note on Kara’s desk requesting that she contact them to arrange a time to meet.

Finally, still having received no reply to her messages, Dr. Thompson and E.M. went to

“Meet the Counselor” day at the Camp on or about June 6, 2004. At the meeting, Dr.

learn in order to manage E.M.’s diabetes. One of the counselors, Emily Berry, expressed
mterest and volunteered to be the counselor assigned to E.M. during the summer. Dr,

Thompson taught Emily how to measure E.M.’s blood glucose level, the significance of
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high and low blood sugar levels, and how to treat them with the insulin pump. At the end
of the meeting, Dr. Thompson stated that she wanted to train another person as a backup
and also review the procedures with Emily one more time.

On or about June 15, 2004, Dr. Thompson met with Korrine (or Karim), the Camp’s
health care employee; Megan Carmichael, the head counselor; and another counselor who
has type I (adult-onset) diabetes and who also volunteered to help look after Emily. Dr.
Thompson taught them what they needed to know to look after E.M. and provided them
with written instructions regarding protocols to follow in managing high, low, and normal
blood sugar levels.

On or about Tuesday, June 22,2004, Dr. Thompsen met with Peter Sylvester, the Camp
program director; Emily Berry; Rachel Tiemey, another counselor; and Megan
Carmichael. Emily and Rachel told Dr. Thompson that they would be looking after
Emily and operating her insulin pump. The procedures for managing E.M.’s diabetes
were reviewed once again. At the end of the meeting, Megan thanked Dr. Thompson and
stated that she felt comfortable, having heard the instructions twice.

E.M. and Hannah attended the first day of camp on Wednesday, June 23, 2004, When
E.M.’s father, Quintus Medley, came to pick up the girls in the evening, the Camp
director, Peter Sylvester, asked Dr. Medley to meet with him. He told Dr. Medley that
they didn’t think they could have E.M. at the Camp because she distracted the counselors
from the other children. He also stated that the Wellesley health inspector told them that
it wasn't legal for E.M. to be there. He denied that the Camp intended to disenroll EM.

but wanted to have further discussion with the parents. It was agreed that Dr. Thompson
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or Dr. Medley would come to Camp the following day to discuss the situation.

After leaving the meeting, Dr. Medley spoke with Emily Berry and asked her if
everything had gone well that day. She stated that everything was fine.

On or about Thursday, June 24, 2004, Dr. Thompson met with Bill Patche, the general
manager, and the regional director from TSI’s Philadelphia office. At the meeting,
various optious were discussed for E.M.’s care. At the end of the meeting, Mr. Patche
stated that he would call later in the day about TSI's decision.

Later that afternoon, Mr. Patche spoke with Dr. Thompson and stated that he had
discussed the situation with the counselors and their medical consultant and that the
medical consultant wanted to have a questions and answer dialogue with E.M.’s doctor.
He stated that E.M. would probably be able to return to camp the following Monday. Dr.
Thompson gave Mr. Patche the numbers of E.M.’s physicians.

On or about Saturday, June 26, Mr. Patche called to say that he had not gotten in touch
with E.M.’s physicians and therefore she could not attend camp on Monday.

On or about Monday, June 28, 2004, Dr. Thompson and Dr. Medley spoke with Mr.
Patche after dropping Hannah off at the Camp. They offered to obtain any information
that he wanted from E.M.’s doctor. Mr, Patche gave them a list of questions that he
wanted answered and stated that if they obtained that information, E.M. would be able to
attend camp on Wednesday.

On or about Tuesday, June 29, 2004, Dr. Thompson met with Debra Holtorf, EM.’s
nurse practitioner at the Joslin Diabetes Center, to review and discuss Dr. Thompson’s

proposed answers to the questions in an initial draft. Ms. Holtorf reviewed and approved
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the answers and signed and dated the document. In order to provide the Camp with ag
much information as possible, Ms. Holtorf also provided copies of orders for all of
E.M.’s possible treatments, Later that afternoon, Dr. Thompson gave Mr. Patche the
diabetic plan and answers to aj] his questions as well as the additional documents
supplied by Ms. Holtorf

That evening, Mr. Patche called to say that E.M. could not attend camp the following day

back to him about the documents supplied by Dr. Thompson. He stated that he hoped
E.M. could return to camp on Wednesday afternoon.
On or about Wednesday, June 30, Dr. Medley spoke to Lenny Izzo, an employee of the

Wellesley Health Department. Mr. Izz0 stated that the Camp should have flagged this

soon as possible,
On or about June 30 or July 1, Emily Berry, the counselor who had volunteered to care
tor E.M., attended a meeting at the Camp with representatives of the Wellesley Health

Department and Camp management. The Health Department employees quizzed her on
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30.
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her knowledge of E.]M.’s care and were satisfied with her answers. Emily stated that she
was comfortable in caring for E.M.. At the same meeting, Peter Sylvester, the Camp
director, told Emily that she was not qualified to provide care for EM.. He stated that
even though Emily was willing to provide care, TSI would not permit E.M. to come back.
On or about Thursday, July 1, Dr. Thompson received a call from the Wellesley Health
Department telling her that the Board and the Camp physician had approved E.M.’s plan
of care.

Dr. Thompson then called Mr. Patche and left a message asking whether the information
she had received from the Board of Health was correct. Shortly thereafter, she received a
call from Gary Kendig, the TSI district manager for the Boston region. Mr. Kendig stated
that the corporate managers in New York had decided that the Camp could not
accommodate E.M. because her diabetes was too complex for them to handle. He stated
that the Camp might be willing to accept E.M. if her parents provided a onc-on-one
counselor, a suggestion that Dr. Thompson rejected. She stated that she was withdrawing
Hannah from the Camp and requested a refund of the tuition they had paid, to which Mr.
Kendig agreed.

Dr. Thompson then enrolled both children in Camp Joey, a camp run by the Wellesley
Recreation Department, for the following week. However the camp had no vacancies for
the rest of the summer. Camp Joey was able to monitor E.M.’s diabetes without
difficulty during the week that she attended.

As a result of defendant’s actions, E.M. was deprived of an opportunity to attend camp

solely because she has diabetes. She was hurt and disappointed and felt stigmatized



because of her diabetes for the first time in her life.

V. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

Eirst Claim for Relief: Titie T of the Americans with Disabilities Act

33.

34,

35.

36.

37.

E.M. is a person with a disability within the meaning of the ADA in that she has diabetes
mellitus and is substantially limited in one or more major life activities, including eating
and metabolizing food.

At all times relevant hereto, Defendants maintained g policy and practice of not
accommodating children with insulin-dependent diabetes in their recreational camping
program,

As described above, Defendants discriminated against E.M. and other children with
insulin-dependent diabetes by excluding them from participation in and denying them the
benefits of their Services, programs, or activities and by subjecting them to discrimination
on the basis of disability in violation of section 302 of Title IIT of the ADA, 42U.8.C.$
12182, and its implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 36,

Defendants have subjected E.M. to discrimination on the basis of disability in the
provision of services, programs, or activities of a public accommodation by failing to
make reasonable modifications in policies, practices, and procedures as necessary to
avoid discrimination on the basis of disability by refusing to allow Camp staff to assist
E.M. with her care, in violation of section 302(b)}2)(A)(ii) of title III of the ADA, 42

US.C. § 12182(b)(2)(A)(1'1'), and its implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. § 36.302.

Defendants have imposed eligibility criteria, for the privilege or advantage of receiving
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services, that screen out the class of individuals who have diabetes, in violation of 42

U.S.C. § 12182(b)(2)(A)()-

Second Claim for Relief:_The Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law

38.

39.

40.

41.

V1L

E.M. is a person with a disability within the meaning of the Massachusetts Public
Accommodations Law in that she has diabetes mellitus and is substantially limited in one
or more major life activities, including eating and metabolizing food.

The Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law, M.G.L. ¢. 272 § 98, requires places of
public accommodation, including recreational programs, to provide people with
disabilities with “full and equal accommodations, advantages, facilities and privileges.”
Defendants violated the Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law by failing to
provide E.M. with full and equal access to its programs and services.

As a result of that violation of the Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law, E.M. was
deprived of the opportunity to participate in Defendants’ summer camp program and
experienced severe emotional distress.

REMEDY

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays that the Court provide relief as follows:

Declare that the discriminatory practices, policies, and procedures of the Defendants, as
set forth above, violate Title I1I of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§
12181-12189, and the Department of Justice’s implementing regulations, 28 C.F.R. Part
36;

Declare that the discriminatory practices, policies, and procedures of the Defendants, as

set forth above violate the Massachusetts Public Accommodations Law, G.L. ¢. 272 § 98;
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Enjoin the Defendants, their officers, agents, and employees, and all other persons in
acttve concert or participation with any of theﬁl, from discriminating on the basis of
disability, including, but not limited to, insulin-dependent diabetes;

Order the Defendants to develop and implement 2 plan to provide appropriate services to
individuals with disabilities, including, but not limited to people with insulin-dependent
diabetes, when necessary to enable such individuals to participate in their programs and
services;

Order the Defendants to design and implement appropriate staff training programs to
ensure that ail staff who have contact with program participants are knowledgeable about
policies related to provision of services to people with insulin-dependent diabetes;
Award monetary damages to the plaintiff to compensate her for the injuries resulting from
such discrimination, including damages for emotional distress;

Award plaintiff the costs of this action, including a reasonable attorney’s fee; and

Award such additional relief as is Just.
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Plaintiff claims a tria] by jury.

March 28, 2005

EM.
By her attorney,

%::é@.lli £( @/]U’:-—-

Jane K. Alper BBO %016140
Disability Law Center, Inc.
11 Beacon Street, Suite 925
Boston, MA 02108
(617) 723-8455 Ext. 135

jalper@dlc-ma.org
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